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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

September 24, 2015

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) provides a review of significant developments that have affected
the performance of Vecima Networks Inc. (“Vecima” or the “Company”) during the year ended June 30, 2015. 

Management’s discussion and analysis supplements, but does not form part of, the audited consolidated
financial statements of Vecima and related notes for the year ended June 30, 2015. Consequently, the following
discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations for the Company should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for the years ended
June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014 which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Additional information regarding the Company, including its Annual Information Form, can be found on SEDAR
at www.sedar.com.

Financial Governance

Vecima’s management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the annual audited  consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto and MD&A. Additionally, it is management’s responsibility to ensure that
the Company complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities.

The Company’s management is accountable to the Board of Directors, each member of which is elected
annually by the shareholders of the Company. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the annual
audited consolidated financial statements and the MD&A, after receiving the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, which is composed of three directors, all of whom are independent. 

The auditors are appointed annually by the shareholders to conduct an audit of the annual consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. The external auditors have complete
access to the Audit Committee to discuss audit, financial reporting and related matters resulting from the annual
audit, as well as to assist the members of the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities.  

Forward-Looking Information

This MD&A contains “forward-looking information” within the meaning of applicable securities laws.  Forward-
looking information is generally identifiable by use of the words ‘‘believes”, “may”, “plans”, “will”, “anticipates”,
“intends”, “could”, “estimates”, “expects”, “forecasts”, “projects” and similar expressions, and the negative of
such expressions. Forward-looking information in this MD&A includes, but is not limited to statements that:
deployment volumes of Terrace QAM are expected to remain strong in fiscal 2016, supported in part by the
addition of the new TransQAM module; moving forward the Company will continue to increase its focus on other
promising opportunities for converged wired solutions; actual R&D spending in a given period may be higher
than the actual expense reported; management believes that its current cash and cash equivalents and short-
term investments and anticipated cash flow from operations will be sufficient to meet its working capital and
capital expenditure requirements for the foreseeable future; the Company believes that it has the flexibility to
obtain from internal sources the funds needed to fulfil its cash requirements during the balance of the current
fiscal year; as announced subsequent to year-end, YourLink has been conditionally awarded funding from
Industry Canada's "Connecting Canadians" program in the amount of $4.6 million to expand YourLink's network
infrastructure in rural Saskatchewan; if the US dollar appreciates relative to the Canadian dollar after Vecima
collects the accounts receivable in US dollars, the Company will receive more Canadian dollars when the US
dollars are converted to Canadian dollars; the Company's outlook for fiscal 2016.

In connection with the forward-looking information contained in this MD&A, the Company has made numerous
assumptions, regarding, among other things: the strength of the Company's balance sheet; the present or
potential value of the Company's core technologies, business operations and asset holdings; the Company is
able to continue its relationships with its few key customers; the Company is able to deliver products associated
with key contracts; the Company can manage its business and its growth successfully; the Company can meet
its customers’ requirements for manufacturing capacity; the Company is able to develop new products and
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enhance its existing products; the Company can expand its current distribution channels and can develop new
distribution channels; the Company is able to recruit and retain management and other qualified personnel
crucial to the Company's business; the Company is not required to change the Company's pricing models to
compete successfully; the Company's third-party suppliers and contract manufacturers upon which it relies
continue to meet its needs; the Company's intellectual property is not infringed upon; the Company is not subject
to warranty or product liability claims that harm its business; the Company is able to successfully implement
acquisitions; the Company is able to manage risks associated with its international operations; currency
fluctuations do not adversely affect the Company; growth in the Company's key markets continues; the Company
is able to adapt to technological change, new products and standards; the Company is not subject to increased
competition that has an adverse effect on its business; continued growth in the converged wired solutions
market; the Company is not subject to competition from new or existing technologies that adversely affect its
business; the Company is not subject to any material new government regulation of its products; and, no third
parties allege that the Company infringes on their intellectual property. While the Company considers these
assumptions to be reasonable, these assumptions are inherently subject to significant uncertainties and
contingencies.

There are known and unknown risk factors which could cause the Company's actual results, performance or
achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or
implied by the forward-looking information contained in this MD&A. Known risk factors include, among others:
the Company's statement of financial position, as well as the value of its core technologies, business operations
and asset holdings may be significantly weaker than currently estimated by the Company; the Company's
operating results are expected to fluctuate; the Company derives a substantial part of its revenue from a few key
customers; the Company may be unable to deliver products associated with key contracts; failure to manage the
Company's business or growth successfully may adversely affect its operating results; the Company derives a
portion of its revenues from its YourLink subsidiary, over which the Company does not have voting control; if the
Company cannot meet its customers’ requirements for manufacturing capacity, sales may suffer; the Company's
success depends on its ability to develop new products and enhance its existing products; the Company is
dependent on the expansion of its current distribution channels and the development of new distribution
channels; the budgeting cycles of larger cable operators can also result in quarter-to-quarter variability in
customer orders generally large in volume, while availability of parts and production capacity can influence the
timing of product deliveries; the Company's ability to recruit and retain management and other qualified
personnel is crucial to its business; if the Company is required to change its pricing models to compete
successfully, its margins and operating results may be adversely affected; the Company's reliance on third-party
suppliers and contract manufacturers reduces its control over its performance; the Company's revenues are
substantially concentrated in a single market category; if the Company's intellectual property is not adequately
protected, it may lose its competitive advantage; successful warranty or product liability claims could harm the
Company's business; acquisitions could divert management’s attention and financial resources, may negatively
affect the Company's operating results and could cause significant dilution to shareholders; risks associated with
the Company's international operations; currency fluctuations may adversely affect the Company; growth in the
Company's key markets may not continue; the Company's inability to adapt to technological change, new
products and standards could harm its business; increased competition could have an adverse effect on the
Company's business; the Company's future success depends on growth in the converged wired solutions
market; competition from new or existing technologies may adversely affect the Company's business;
government regulation of the Company's products and new government regulation could harm the Company's
business; and, third parties may allege that the Company infringes on their intellectual property.  A more
complete discussion of the risks and uncertainties facing the Company is disclosed under the heading “Risks
and Uncertainties” below and under the heading “Risk Factors” in the Company's Annual Information Form for its
most recently completed fiscal year, as well as in the Company's continuous disclosure filings with Canadian
securities regulatory authorities available at www.sedar.com. All forward-looking information in this MD&A is
qualified in its entirety by this cautionary statement and the Company disclaims any obligation to revise or update
such forward-looking information to reflect future results, events or developments, except as required by law. 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of Vecima have designed, or caused to
be designed, disclosure controls and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that material information
relating to Vecima is made known by Vecima to others, particularly during the period in which annual filings are
being prepared, and information required to be disclosed by Vecima in its annual filings, interim filings or other
reports filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in securities legislation.
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The CEO and the CFO have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
as defined under rules adopted by the Canadian securities regulatory authorities. Based on that evaluation, the
CEO and CFO have concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as at
June 30, 2015.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The CEO and CFO have designed, or caused to be designed under their supervision, internal controls over
financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with IFRS.

The CEO and CFO have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as at June 30, 2015 in accordance with Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013), published by The
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO"). Based on this evaluation, the
CEO and CFO have determined that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is not effective as at
June 30, 2015 due to the following material weakness: certain areas within the Company's information systems
were subject to general control deficiencies including a lack of effective control over spreadsheets, access and
documentation.

The impact of this material weakness was that there was a reasonable possibility that the Company's internal
controls over financial reporting would fail to prevent or detect a material misstatement of a financial statement
amount or disclosure. To mitigate this material weakness, all material transactions and related accounting
records were overseen by the CEO, CFO and the Vice President Finance of the Company. This mitigation may
reduce the impact of the material weakness, but did not eliminate the existence of the material weakness. There
are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of internal controls, including the possibility of human
error and the circumvention or overriding of internal controls. Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Accordingly, even if internal controls are
effective, they can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their control objectives.

In an effort to remediate this material weakness, management worked with qualified consultants to develop
processes and procedures to enhance our controls. While we have made considerable progress, additional work
is required in fiscal 2016 to completely remediate this material weakness.

Company Overview

A Canadian company founded in 1988, Vecima has offices in Saskatoon, Saskatchewan, Burnaby, BC and
Victoria, BC. Vecima also has a software development facility in Mangalore, India, operated by a majority owned
subsidiary.

Vecima designs, manufactures and sells products that enable broadband access to cable, wireless and
telephony networks. Vecima's hardware products incorporate original embedded software to meet the complex
requirements of next-generation, high-speed digital networks.  Service providers use Vecima's solutions to
deliver services to a converging worldwide broadband market, including what are commonly known as "triple
play" (voice, video and data) and "quadruple play" (voice, video, data and wireless) services.  Vecima’s solutions
allow service providers to bridge the final network segment that connects a system directly to end-users,
commonly referred to as “the last mile”.

Vecima’s products incorporate sophisticated hardware and software developed within the Company's research
and development facilities. The in-house developed technology includes high-speed digital signal processing,
control, digital modulation, radio frequency circuitry and compensation functions. In addition to these
technologies, Vecima's embedded software also facilitates the implementation of other network functions, such
as media access control and embedded system management.

The Company's products are directed at two principal markets: (1) converged wired solutions; and, (2)
broadband wireless.  

1. Converged Wired Solutions products include a family of upconverter and modulator modules that
process data from routers and convert it to higher frequencies for transmission over cable to
subscribers, gigabit network edge devices, EdgeQAM modulators, and transmodulators.  These devices
accept high bit rate video streams from central servers and transmit them to subscribers, return path
demodulators, and the Terrace family of last-mile gateway products.
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2. Broadband Wireless Products include transmitters, receivers and transceivers that process data from
routers, switches and modems for the purpose of communication to subscribers over a wireless
environment. Vecima is also a leading developer of high-performance, software-reconfigurable signal
processing platforms for intelligence, surveillance, reconnaissance, military, satellite communications,
and video processing applications.

In addition to designing and producing hardware and software products, Vecima provides services directly to
end-users through its YourLink business unit. YourLink operates several small cable and broadband wireless
service providers that provide high speed data, telephone and video services to parts of rural British Columbia,
as well as fixed wireless data and telephone access through much of Saskatchewan to both residential and
business subscribers. YourLink also owns certain licenses to commercial spectrum within Canada.  Through
YourLink, Vecima is able to derive predictable monthly subscription revenue.

Sales

Vecima reports sales broken down by the Company's three core markets: Converged Wired Solutions,
Broadband Wireless and YourLink. Converged Wired Solutions and Broadband Wireless make up the product
segment and YourLink makes up the services segment in segmented information.

Converged Wired Solutions 

Cable operators have introduced and are expanding into digital video, voice and data services in addition to
offering traditional analog video services. Converged wired solutions enable cable operators to provide
customers with an alternative to telco-based ADSL and other types of broadband access and offer the following
advantages for cable service providers:

• Creates Additional Revenue Streams. High-speed Internet service can be delivered to an existing base

of customers already served with video and pay-per-view entertainment programming. Existing billing

systems and technical resources can be used to deliver this service to existing subscribers.

• Reduces Customer Turnover. By offering bundled packages of broadband voice and video services,

cable service providers are seeking to gain a competitive advantage over telcos and direct broadcast

satellite providers while retaining their traditional video subscribers.

• Provides Low-Cost Market Entry. High-speed Internet service can be delivered economically to the

consumer with the installation of an inexpensive cable modem.

Broadband Wireless

Broadband wireless technology has evolved to provide cost-effective broadband communication for business
and residential subscribers. Standards-based wireless technology is expected to accelerate and extend
worldwide wireless broadband communications. Along with offering the same high-speed access as other
broadband access solutions, broadband wireless offers the following additional advantages for network service
providers:

• Enables Rapid Deployment. Service can be initiated quickly because there is no need to install copper

wire, cable or optical fibre past every home before service can commence.

• Provides Low-Cost Market Entry. Service can be delivered economically with one base station and a

small number of initial subscribers.

• Offers Scalability. Subscribers can be added rapidly and cost-effectively, since each installed base

station can support thousands of subscribers and the subscriber equipment is supplied only to

customers who subscribe for service.
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YourLink 

YourLink operates four small cable television systems in British Columbia and provides wireless broadband
internet service in Saskatchewan and British Columbia. As at June 30, 2015, these systems provide video
services and/or broadband internet access to 17,725 subscribers. 

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists primarily of product manufacturing and assembly expenses, with component parts,
employee and third-party supplier costs representing a significant portion of these costs. Costs associated with
product sales include related overhead, compensation, final assembly, quality assurance and inventory
management costs, as well as support costs and payments to contract manufacturers that perform printed circuit
board assembly functions. Costs associated with service sales consist of the costs of purchased program
content, back-haul costs for connection to the internet and the costs of operating the cable and wireless
infrastructure.

Operating Expenses

Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and related expenses for engineering
personnel, the costs of prototypes and consumables and the costs of amortizing previously deferred
development costs.

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of costs relating to personnel and to sales and marketing
activities, including salaries and related expenses, advertising, trade shows and other promotional activities and
materials.

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of costs relating to the maintenance of the Company's
buildings, administrative and finance functions, legal and other professional fees, insurance, YourLink systems
maintenance, and other corporate and overhead expenses.
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Selected Consolidated Financial Information and Other Data

The following information other than number of employees has been derived from Vecima's annual consolidated
financial statements for each of fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013.  This information other than Adjusted EBITDA, total
research and development expenditures, number of employees and percentages, has also been prepared in
accordance with IFRS. You should read the following information in conjunction with the Company's financial
statements for the relevant periods including the related notes and with the balance of this MD&A.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Income Data

Year ended June  30,

(in thousands of Canadian dollars except
percentages, employees, dividends/distributions and
per share amounts) 2015 2014 2013

Sales $ 94,048 %100 $ 90,705 %100 $ 91,249 %100

Cost of sales 42,967 %46 45,831 %51 52,335 %57

Gross margin 51,081 %54 44,874 %49 38,914 %43

Operating expenses

Research and development(1) 9,337 %10 8,186 %9 7,663 %8

Sales and marketing 6,125 %7 5,855 %7 5,248 %6

General and administrative 15,496 %16 15,802 %17 17,143 %19

Impairment of intangible assets 1,192 %1 295 %- - %-

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 457 %- - %- - %-

Stock-based compensation 502 %- 23 %- 42 %-

Other income (394) %- (15,175) %(17) (13,977) %(15)

32,715 %34 14,986 %16 16,119 %18

Operating income 18,366 %20 29,888 %33 22,795 %25

Finance income 632 %1 458 %1 194 %-

Foreign exchange gain 1,791 %1 269 %- 864 %1

Income before income taxes 20,789 %22 30,615 %34 23,853 %26

Income tax expense 5,652 %6 6,013 %7 4,691 %5

Net income and total comprehensive income $ 15,137 %16 $ 24,602 %27 $ 19,162 %21

Net income and total comprehensive income per share(2)

Basic $ 0.68 $ 1.10 $ 0.86

Diluted $ 0.68 $ 1.10 $ 0.86

Dividends/distributions $ 4,023 $ 22,328 $22,322

Other Data

Total research and development expenditures(3) $ 15,677 %17 $ 13,227 %15 $ 14,265 %16

Adjusted EBITDA(4) $ 29,025 %31 $ 23,107 %25 $ 18,274 %20

Adjusted earnings per share(5) $ 0.73 $ 0.56 $ 0.35

Number of employees(6) 489 507 571

(1) Net of investment tax credits and capitalized development costs

(2) Based on weighted average number of common shares outstanding

(3) See "Total Research and Development Expenditures"

(4) Adjusted EBITDA does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and is therefore unlikely to be comparable to

similar measures presented by other issuers.  See "Adjusted EBITDA"

(5) Adjusted EPS does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and is therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar

measures presented by other issuers. See "Adjusted Earnings Per Share" 

(6) The number of employees is determined as of the fiscal year end
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position Data

(unaudited - in thousands of dollars except number of common
shares)

As at

June 30, 2015

As at

June 30, 2014

As at

June 30, 2013

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,777 $ 15,282 $ 7,148

Short-term investments $ 46,894 $ 33,197 $ 24,699

Working capital $ 84,786 $ 72,692 $ 66,459

Total assets $ 168,072 $ 157,275 $ 154,790

Long-term debt $ 2,708 $ 2,958 $ 3,229

Shareholder's equity $ 151,324 $ 139,473 $ 137,149

Number of common shares outstanding(1) 22,348,093 22,325,125 22,322,422

(1) Based on weighted average number of common shares outstanding

Adjusted Earnings Per Share

The following table reconciles net income for the period to adjusted net income. The term “adjusted net income”
refers to net income or net loss as reported in the IFRS financial statements, excluding any amounts included in
net income or net loss for gains and losses on sale of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and
assets held for resale, impairments of intangible assets, and the tax effect of these adjusted items. Vecima
believes that adjusted earnings per share is useful supplemental information for management and the
Company's investors because it provides for the analysis of the Company's results exclusive of certain items
which do not directly correlate to its business of selling broadband access products or providing rural
cable/Internet services. Adjusted earnings per share does not have a standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS
and is therefore unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers.

Calculation of Adjusted Earnings Per Share Year ended June 30,

(unaudited - in thousands of dollars except per share amounts) 2015 2014 2013

Net income $ 15,137 $ 24,602 $ 19,162

Gain on sale of spectrum licenses, net of taxes (247) (3,252) (8,438)

Gain on sale of non-core property, plant and equipment, net of taxes 144 (8,960) (3,228)

Impairment of intangible assets, net of taxes 883 219 -

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, net of taxes 339 - 275

Adjusted net income $ 16,256 $ 12,609 $ 7,771

Earnings per share $ 0.68 $ 1.10 $ 0.86

Gain on sale of spectrum licenses, net of taxes (0.01) (0.15) (0.38)

Gain on sale of non-core property, plant and equipment, net of taxes 0.01 (0.40) (0.14)

Impairment of intangible assets, net of taxes 0.04 0.01 -

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, net of taxes 0.01 - 0.01

Adjusted earnings per share $ 0.73 $ 0.56 $ 0.35

Adjusted EBITDA

The following table reconciles net income for the period to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA. The term “EBITDA”
refers to net income or net loss as reported in the IFRS financial statements, excluding any amounts included in
net income or net loss for income taxes, interest expense, and depreciation and amortization for property plant
and equipment and intangible assets.  The term “Adjusted EBITDA” refers to EBITDA adjusted for gains and
losses on sale of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and assets held for resale, impairment of
property, plant, and equipment, impairment of deferred development costs and stock compensation expense.
Vecima believes that Adjusted EBITDA is useful supplemental information for management and for the
Company's investors because it provides for the analysis of its results exclusive of certain non-cash items and
other items which do not directly correlate to our business of selling broadband access products or providing
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rural cable/internet services. Adjusted EBITDA is not a recognized measure under IFRS and, accordingly,
investors are cautioned that Adjusted EBITDA should not be construed as an alternative to net income,
determined in accordance with IFRS, or as an indicator of Vecima's financial performance or as a measure of
the Company's liquidity and cash flows.

Calculation of Adjusted EBITDA

Year ended June 30,

 

(unaudited - in thousands of Canadian dollars except percentages) 2015 2014 2013

Net income $ 15,137 $ 24,602 $ 19,162

Income tax expense 5,652 6,013 4,691

Interest expense 103 214 216

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,060 3,317 4,830

Amortization of deferred development costs 2,932 2,565 2,271

Amortization of finite-life intangible assets 109 107 148

EBITDA 26,993 36,818 31,318

Loss on disposal of intangibles 209 - (9,694)

Gain on sale of assets held for resale (493) (3,736) (3,604)

Loss (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment 165 (10,293) (104)

Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 457 - 316

Impairment of intangible assets 1,192 295 -

Stock-based compensation 502 23 42

Adjusted EBITDA $ 29,025 $ 23,107 $ 18,274

Adjusted EBITDA margin (%) %31 %25 %20

Total Research and Development Expenditures

The following table reconciles research and development expense reported in accordance with IFRS as shown
on the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2015, and 2014 to
Vecima's actual cash research and development expenditures.

Calculation of Research and Development Expenditures

Year ended June 30,

 

(unaudited - in thousands of Canadian dollars except percentages) 2015 2014 2013

Research and development per statement of income $ 9,337 $ 8,186 $ 7,663

Deferred development costs 8,807 6,929 7,171

Investment tax credits 465 677 1,702

Amortization of deferred development costs (2,932) (2,565) (2,271)

Total research and development expenditure $ 15,677 $ 13,227 $ 14,265

Percentage of sales %17 %15 %16
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Selected Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information and Other Data

The following information has been derived from Vecima's consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2015 in
accordance with IFRS.  This information should be read in conjunction with those financial statements and their
related notes as well as with the balance of this MD&A.  

Fiscal Year 2015 Fiscal Year 2014

(unaudited - in thousands of
Canadian dollars except
percentages) Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Sales 24,011 23,197 23,712 23,128 24,870 22,592 21,587 21,656

Cost of sales 9,918 10,049 11,422 11,578 11,954 10,782 11,657 11,438

Gross margin 14,093 13,148 12,290 11,550 12,916 11,810 9,930 10,218

Operating expenses

Research and development 2,421 2,431 2,383 2,102 2,003 2,135 1,867 2,181

Sales and marketing 1,517 1,542 1,785 1,281 1,841 1,402 1,155 1,457

General and administrative 3,968 3,860 3,844 3,824 3,643 3,983 4,254 3,922

Impairment of intangible assets 157 1,035 - - 295 - - -

Impairment of property, plant and

equipment 457 - - - - - - -

Stock-based compensation 99 129 271 3 5 5 6 7

Other income 112 (25) (457) (24) (742) (50) (10,440) (3,943)

8,731 8,972 7,826 7,186 7,045 7,475 (3,158) 3,624

Operating income 5,362 4,176 4,464 4,364 5,871 4,335 13,088 6,594

Finance income 199 169 162 102 69 86 235 67

Foreign exchange gain 60 437 286 1,008 (411) 249 311 121

Income before income taxes 5,621 4,782 4,912 5,474 5,529 4,670 13,634 6,782

Income tax expense 1,741 1,229 1,221 1,461 1,175 1,272 2,220 1,346

Net income and total
comprehensive income $ 3,880 $ 3,553 $ 3,691 $ 4,013 $ 4,354 $ 3,398 $ 11,414 $ 5,436

Net income and total comprehensive income per share

Basic $ 0.17 $ 0.16 $ 0.17 $ 0.18 $ 0.20 $ 0.15 $ 0.51 $ 0.24

Diluted $ 0.18 $ 0.16 $ 0.17 $ 0.18 $ 0.19 $ 0.15 $ 0.51 $ 0.24

Fiscal 2014 quarterly comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation
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Fourth Quarter Financial Highlights

Sales

Sales by Core Market Three months ended June 30,

 

(unaudited - in thousands of Canadian dollars except
percentages) 2015 2014

Converged Wired Solutions $ 19,868 %83 $ 20,866 %84

Broadband Wireless 869 %3 427 %2

YourLink 3,274 %14 3,577 %14

Total Sales $ 24,011 %100 $ 24,870 %100

For the three months ended June 30, 2015, Vecima generated total sales $24.0 million, a 3% decrease from the
$24.9 million generated during the same period in fiscal 2014.

Converged Wired Solutions

Converged Wired Solutions sales decreased 5% to $19.9 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, from $20.9
million in Q4 2014.

• Fourth quarter sales of Terrace QAM increased 85% to $9.7 million in Q4 2015, from $5.2 million in the

same period in fiscal 2014.  On a sequential quarterly basis, sales of Terrace QAM were similar to the

very strong $9.6 million sales level achieved in Q3 2015.  The robust third and fourth quarter

performance were driven by continued strong demand from Vecima's lead customer.  Deployment

volumes of Terrace QAM are expected to remain strong in fiscal 2016, supported in part by the addition

of the new TransQAM module.  Terrace QAM is purpose designed for the hospitality industry, providing

an elegant platform over which cable operators can deliver a leading high-definition service offering.

• Fourth quarter sales of Terrace family products were $6.7 million, a 15% decrease from $7.9 million

during the same period in fiscal 2014. On a sequential quarterly basis, Terrace family sales declined

10% from $7.5 million in Q3 2015. The fluctuations in quarterly sales reflect the different stages of

network conversion activity by various MSO customers. Terrace family products remain a leading choice

of MSO’s undertaking all-digital network conversions. The attractiveness of the solution has been further

enhanced by the recent deployment of the TC600E, which is enjoying rapid market acceptance and wide

adoption. Incorporating state-of-the art MPEG-4 HD video, the TC600E delivers a 30-to-50% savings in

network capacity to support commercial customers’ video offerings 

• Vecima reported Digital Video Access Platform (DVAP) sales of $0.4 million in the fourth quarter,

compared to $2.7 million in Q4 2014. On a sequential quarterly basis, DVAP sales increased from $nil in

Q3 2015. DVAP sales were minimal in both the third and fourth quarters of 2015 following a large

volume of deliveries in the second quarter of fiscal 2015. Vecima is delivering this product to the lead

customer under a USD $19 million take-or-pay contract.

Broadband Wireless
 
Broadband Wireless sales increased 104% to $0.9 million in the three months ended June 30, 2015 from $0.4
million during the same period in 2014. On a sequential quarterly basis, sales increased 55% compared to Q3
2015. These increases largely reflect last-time purchases by customers prior to the discontinuation of certain of
Vecima’s software defined radio products. During the fourth quarter of 2015, Vecima continued with the
restructuring of operations related to these products in response to continued weakness in defense spending.

YourLink 

YourLink sales were $3.3 million in Q4 fiscal 2015, compared to $3.6 million in the prior year quarter.  The 6%
year-over-year decrease in sales was mainly due to decreased internet and equipment sales. On a sequential
quarterly basis, Q4 2015 sales were similar to the $3.4 million achieved in Q3 2015.
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Quarter-to-Quarter Sales Variances

There are many factors that contribute to the overall variances of Vecima’s sales. One of the main factors is our
product development cycle, with Vecima continually developing new products to replace products that are
reaching the end of their lifecycle. Since Vecima’s new products are at the leading edge of technology, the timing
of development can vary as can the timing of regulatory certification and customer acceptance of new products.  

The budgeting cycles of larger cable operators can also result in quarter-to-quarter variability in customer orders,
while availability of parts and production capacity can influence the timing of product deliveries.

Gross margin

Gross margin percentage increased sharply to 59% for the three months ended June 30, 2015, providing a profit
margin of $14.1 million.  This compares to a gross margin of 52% and a gross profit of $12.9 million for the same
period in 2014.  Gross margin percentage was positively impacted by the favourable foreign exchange influence
of a lower Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar, as well as by product mix and manufacturing efficiencies.

Operating expenses

Research and development expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2015 were $2.4 million, or 10% of
sales, compared with $2.0 million, or 8% of sales for the three months ended June 30, 2014.  Development costs
related to new product development are typically deferred until new products reach the commercial production
stage.  As such, actual R&D spending in a given period may be higher than the actual expense reported.   Total
R&D costs before deferrals, amortization of deferred development costs and income tax credits were $4.1
million, or 17% of sales, in line with $4.1 million, or 17% of sales for the same period last year.  

Sales and marketing expenses were $1.5 million, or 6% of sales, for the three months ended June 30, 2015,
compared to $1.8 million, or 8% of sales for the three months ended June 30, 2014. The decrease in total sales
and marketing expenses primarily reflects higher inventory allowances for slow-moving finished goods inventory
in the prior-year quarter.

General and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2015 were $4.0 million compared to
$3.6 million in the same period last year.  The year-over-year increase reflects increased overheads compared to
the Q4 2014 period. 

Stock-based compensation expense for the three months ended June 30, 2015 was $0.10 million, compared to
$0.01 million for the three months ended June 30, 2014. The expense reflects the ongoing amortization of the
stock options issued in prior periods.

Impairment of capital assets for the three months ended June 30, 2015 was $0.5 million, compared to $nil in the
same period last year.  This impairment represents certain capital assets of YourLink within British Columbia that
had indicators of impairment at the cash generating unit level. 

Impairment of intangible assets for the three months ended June 30, 2015 was $0.2 million, compared to $0.3
million in the same period last year.  These impairments represent deferred development projects that the
Company has no intention to continue into the future. 

Other income for the three months ended June 30, 2015 was $(0.1) million, compared to $0.7 million in the same
period last year. This decrease is a result of a loss on disposal of indefinite life assets in Q4 2015 and a result of
receiving a contract cancellation fee in Q4 2014.

Operating income was $5.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to $5.9 million for the
three months ended June 30, 2014.  Decreased sales of $0.9 million were more than offset by gross margin
improvements which resulted in the $1.2 million improvement in gross profit. Total operating costs quarter over
quarter increased by $1.7 million as described above.

Finance income was $0.20 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 an increase from $0.07 million for
the same period in the prior year.
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Foreign exchange gain increased to $0.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to a
foreign exchange loss of $(0.4) million for the three months ended June 30, 2014. 

Income tax expense for the three months ended June 30, 2015 was $1.7 million, compared with $1.2 million for
the same period last year.  This increase mainly reflects higher net income before taxes year over year.

Net income for the three months ended June 30, 2015 was $3.9 million or $0.17 per share, compared with net
income of $4.4 million or $0.20 per share for the three months ended June 30, 2014. 

Cash from Operating Activities

For the three months ended June 30, 2015, cash flow from operating activities provided cash of $6.7 million
compared to cash of $10.2 million in the same period in 2014.  Net changes in non-cash working capital resulted
in a cash outflow of $0.2 million in the current quarter compared to cash outflows of $4.2 million in the same
quarter in fiscal 2014. 

Investing Activities

Cash flow used in investing activities was $5.8 million in the three months ended June 30, 2015 compared to
cash used in investing activities of $2.8 million in the three months ended June 30, 2014. The cash flow used in
investing activities was a result of purchase of property, plant and equipment of $0.2 million (Q4 2014 – $0.9
million), deferred development expenditures of $2.4 million (Q4 2014 - $2.9 million) and net purchase of short-
term investments of $3.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2015 (Q4 2014 – net proceeds on sale of
short-term investments - $0.9 million).  

Financing Activities

For the three months ended June 30, 2015 the Company repaid $0.06 million of its long-term debt compared to
$0.06 million for the three months ended June 30, 2014.  The Company paid dividends of $1.0 million in the
current quarter.

Fiscal Year Financial Highlights

Sales

Sales by Core Market Year Ended

June 30,

(unaudited - in thousands of Canadian dollars except

percentages) 2015 2014

Converged Wired Solutions $ 77,914 %83 $ 69,880 %77

Broadband Wireless 2,434 %3 6,528 %7

YourLink 13,700 %14 14,297 %16

Total Sales $ 94,048 %100 $ 90,705 %100

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, sales increased 4% to $94.0 million from $90.7 million in fiscal 2014.

Converged Wired Solutions 

Converged Wired Solutions sales increased 11% to $78.0 million for the year ended June 30, 2015 from $69.9
million in 2014. Our Terrace Family of products showed the most growth (12%) year over year reflecting strong
growth in sales for Vecima's newer digital video access platform (DVAP) products following the successful
conclusion of approval testing by a number of major MSOs. The year-over-year sales growth also reflects higher
sales of Terrace QAM products which are used in the hospitality industry.  Sales of OEM return path
demodulator products were also up year over year.

• Sales of Terrace QAM increased 67% to $33.8 million in fiscal 2015 from $20.2 million in 2014. The

growth in sales was driven by very strong demand from Vecima’s lead customer as it supplies its
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growing base of hospitality industry customers.

• Year-to-date sales of Terrace family products were $27.8 million, compared to the $29.5 million

achieved in fiscal 2014. The year-over-year change in sales reflects the different stages of network

conversion activity as various MSO customers transition to all-digital.   

• Sales of Vecima’s Digital Video Access Platform (DVAP) increased 47% to $5.4 million in fiscal 2015

from $3.7 million in 2014. To date, Vecima has shipped USD $8.1 million of DVAP to the lead customer

against the USD $19 million contract commitment. 

Broadband Wireless

Broadband Wireless sales decreased 63% to $2.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2015 from $6.5 million in
2014.  This decrease is mainly attributable to lower software defined radio sales with declines also seen in other
wireless product sales. During the fourth quarter of 2015, Vecima continued with the restructuring of operations
related to these products in response to continued weakness in defense spending.

Moving forward the Company will continue to increase its focus on other promising opportunities for converged
wired solutions.

YourLink 

YourLink sales were $13.7 million in fiscal 2015 compared to $14.3 million in 2014. The decrease was mainly
due to decreased internet sales and a commercial installation project in 2014.

Gross margin

Vecima’s gross margin percentage increased to 54% for the year ended June 30, 2015, providing a gross
margin of $51.1 million. This compares to a gross margin percentage of 49% and a gross margin of $44.9 million
in fiscal 2014. Gross margin was positively impacted by the favourable foreign exchange influence of a lower
Canadian dollar as well as by product mix and manufacturing efficiencies.

Operating expenses

Research and development expenses for the year ended June 30, 2015 were $9.3 million, or 10% of revenue,
compared to $8.2 million, or 9% of revenue in 2014. Vecima continues to invest in research and development to
support the launch of new products. Until these products are in commercial production, the development costs
are deferred to future periods. Total research and development costs before deferrals, amortization of deferred
development costs and income tax credits for the year ended June 30, 2015 increased to $15.7 million, or 17%
of sales, from $13.2 million, or 15% of sales in 2014. The increase primarily reflects the addition of R&D
personnel, higher employee compensation and an increase in prototyping activity as Vecima steps up
development of new products. 

Sales and marketing expenses were $6.1 million, or 7% of sales in 2015, compared to $5.9 million, or 7% of
sales for the same period last year. This increase reflects higher finished goods inventory write-downs in 2015.

General and administrative expenses were $15.5 million in fiscal 2015 compared to $15.8 million in fiscal 2014.
The year-over-year decrease is a result of lower amortization of property, plant and equipment.
 
Stock-based compensation expense increased to $0.50 million, compared to $0.02 million in 2014. The increase
in expense reflects the stock options issued in the second quarter of fiscal 2015.

Impairment of capital assets was $0.5 million in fiscal 2015 compared to $nil in the same period last year.  This
impairment represents certain capital assets of YourLink within British Columbia that had indicators of
impairment at the cash generating unit level. 

Impairment of intangible assets for the year was $1.2 million, compared to $0.3 million in the same period last
year.  These impairments represent deferred development projects impaired due to the restructuring of software
defined radio sales operations and deferred development projects that the Company has no intention to continue
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into the future. 

Other income decreased to $0.4 million in 2015, from $15.2 million in 2014.  In 2014, the Company recorded a
$10.3 million gain on the sale of its downtown Saskatoon property, a $3.7 million gain on the sale of spectrum
licenses, a $0.6 million contract cancellation fee and $0.3 million of lease revenue from the Saskatoon property
that was later sold. By comparison, Vecima has sold $0.5 million of spectrum licenses in fiscal 2015. 

Operating income was $18.4 million in fiscal 2015, compared to an operating income of $29.9 in 2014.
Increased sales of $3.3 million as well as gross margin improvements described above resulted in improved
gross profit year-over-year of $6.2 million.  Total operating costs year-over-year increased by $17.7 million as
described above.

Finance income increased to $0.6 million in fiscal 2015 from $0.5 million in 2014. 

Foreign exchange gain increased to $1.8 million in fiscal 2015 from $0.3 million in 2014.

Income tax expense decreased to $5.7 million in fiscal 2015 from $6.0 million in 2014.  The income tax rate is
lower than the expected tax rate of approximately 26% in the prior year due to the non-taxable portion of capital
gains.

Net income for fiscal 2015 was $15.1 million or $0.68 per share, compared to net income of $24.6 million or
$1.10 per share for the fiscal 2014. 

Cash from Operating Activities

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, cash flow from operating activities provided cash of $27.1 million
compared to $31.6 million in 2014.  The $4.5 million decrease primarily reflects the collection of $4.7 million in
income tax refunds in the prior year. Cash flow from non-cash working capital increased in 2015 compared to the
prior year and cash from other operating activities has decreased in 2015. 

Investing Activities

Cash flow used by investing activities increased to $25.6 million in 2015 from $0.9 million in 2014. The largest
use of cash was the net purchase of short-term investments of $13.7 million (2014 - $8.5 million).  Other
investing activity represents proceeds on the sale of real estate of $nil (2014 - $13.5 million), proceeds on the
sale of spectrum licenses of $0.5 million (2014 - $4.1 million), purchase of property, plant and equipment of $2.3
million (2014 – $3.0 million) and deferred development expenditures of $8.8 million (2014 - $6.9 million).  

Financing Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2015 the Company paid dividends of $4.0 million.  The prior-year included a return
of capital to shareholders of $12.1 million and a dividend of $10.3 million.  The Company repaid $0.3 million of its
long-term debt compared to the $0.3 million repaid in fiscal 2014.    

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company manages its liquidity and capital resources to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all
financial commitments and obligations as they fall due. The Company believes it has the flexibility to obtain from
internal sources, the funds needed to fulfil its cash requirements during the following financial year. The liquidity
requirements of the Company’s business are met primarily by funds generated from operations. 

As at June 30, 2015, the Company had access to its full revolving loan facility of $15.0 million, of which no
amount was drawn as an operating line of credit (June 30, 2014 – $0.0 million was drawn). The Company has
term credit of $3.0 million as at June 30, 2015 (June 30, 2014 - $3.2 million). Management believes that its
current cash and short-term investments and anticipated cash flow from operations will be sufficient to meet the
Company's working capital and capital expenditure requirements for the foreseeable future.

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2015 were $2.3 million compared to fiscal 2014 capital expenditures of $3.0
million.  As announced subsequent to year-end, YourLink has been conditionally awarded funding from Industry
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Canada's "Connecting Canadians" program in the amount of $4.6 million to expand YourLink's network
infrastructure in rural Saskatchewan.

Working Capital

Working capital represents the Company’s current assets less current liabilities. Vecima’s working capital
remained strong at $84.8 million at June 30, 2015, up from $72.7 million at June 30, 2014. Working capital
balances can be subject to significant swings from quarter to quarter. Vecima's product shipments are “lumpy”,
reflecting the requirements of our major customers. It is not unusual to ship $5 or $6 million of product in a one
week period. If this level of sales occurs in the first week of a succeeding quarter, Vecima would expect to
experience an increase in inventory levels and a drop in receivables in the prior quarter. Other timing issues, like
contractual terms of greater than 30 day payment terms, also affect working capital, particularly if shipments are
back-end weighted for a quarter.

Accounts receivable balance increased 12% to $13.1 million at June 30, 2015 compared to $11.7 million at June
30, 2014  The increase in accounts receivable represents the timing of when the sales were incurred in the
quarter compared to the prior year quarter.

Income tax receivable balance increased $0.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2015 representing tax
instalments in excess of income tax owing for YourLink.

Inventory decreased by $2.1 million to $22.9 million at June 30, 2015 compared to $25.0 million as at June 30,
2014. Finished goods inventories were $8.8 million at June 30, 2015, compared to $10.2 million at June 30,
2014. The finished goods inventory turnover rate was 4.5 times per year at June 30, 2015 compared to 4.7 times
at June 30, 2014. Raw material inventory decreased to $9.7 million at June 30, 2015, compared to $10.4 million
at June 30, 2014. Work in process inventories increased to $4.4 million as at June 30, 2015 compared to $4.3
million at June 30, 2014. Vecima manufactures and assembles products, with the result that inventory levels will
be substantially higher than for other companies in our industry that outsource manufacturing and assembly.

Investment tax credits decreased by $2.5 million to $24.3 million at June 30, 2015 from $26.8 million at June 30,
2014. For every dollar the Company spends on eligible research and development in Canada, it generates
approximately forty two cents in income tax credits. These credits are used to offset the Company’s income tax
payable.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased 5% to $9.2 million at June 30, 2015 representing 80 days for
payables to be outstanding. This compares to $9.7 million at June 30, 2014, representing an average of 78 days
for payables to be outstanding. This dollar decrease is a result of timing of purchases in the fourth quarter of
2015 compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014.

Long-term debt, including current portion, decreased to $3.0 million at June 30, 2015 from $3.2 million at June
30, 2014. 

Contractual Obligations

The Company has lease commitments for production equipment, service vehicles and facilities amounted to
$1.6 million within one year and $3.5 million after one year but not more than five years and $nil thereafter.

Foreign Exchange

Approximately 85% of Vecima's revenues are denominated in US dollars. Vecima translates US dollar sales to
Canadian dollars on the date of delivery and subsequently when the account receivable is collected. If the US
dollar appreciates relative to the Canadian dollar after Vecima collects the accounts receivable in US dollars, the
Company will receive more Canadian dollars when the US dollars are converted to Canadian dollars in
subsequent months. The Company enjoys a substantial natural hedge since the majority of its materials and
components purchases are also in US dollars.

During the year, the exchange rate on the Canadian dollar weakened from Canadian $1.067 against the U.S.
dollar as at June 30, 2014 to Canadian $1.249 against the U.S. dollar as at June 30, 2015. This $0.182
exchange difference increased the value of the Company's $13.7 million U.S. dollar net assets by approximately
$6.6 million Canadian over the twelve month period.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Vecima does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current
or future effect on the financial performance or financial conditions of Vecima. 

Share Data

As at September 24, 2015, the Company had 22,330,536 common shares outstanding as well as options
outstanding that are exercisable for an additional 164,556 common shares. 

Dividends

On September 24, 2014, Vecima announced a dividend policy whereby the Company plans to pay an annual
dividend to its common shareholders, payable quarterly.  For fiscal 2015, the Company declared and paid
dividends of $4.0 million or $0.18 per share. 

On September 24, 2015, the Board of Directors increased the annual dividend to $0.22 per share and declared a
quarterly dividend of $0.055 per common share, payable on October 30, 2015 to shareholders of record as at
October 9, 2015.  This dividend will not be designated as an "eligible dividend" for Canadian income tax
purposes.  Future quarterly dividends will be subject to board approval.

Transactions Between Related Parties

Vecima leases a building in Saskatoon under a ten-year lease from Dr. Surinder Kumar, the Chairman of
Vecima.  The lease was entered into in 2010 and expires in 2019.  The rental expense from this transaction was
$0.28 million for the year ended June 30, 2015 (June 30, 2014 - $0.28 million).

Proposed Transactions

There are no proposed asset or business acquisitions or dispositions that Vecima's Board of Directors have
decided to proceed with or that Vecima's senior management believes confirmation by the Board of Directors is
probable.

Financial Instruments

Vecima periodically enters into forward contracts to partially manage its exposure to currency fluctuations
between Canadian and U.S. dollars.  Forward contracts are entered into based on our projected requirements for
converting U.S. to Canadian dollars.  Vecima does not recognize these contracts in the consolidated financial
statements when they are entered into, nor does Vecima account for them as hedges.  Instead, the contracts are
marked to fair value at each balance sheet date.  Changes to fair value are recorded in income.  The fair value of
these contracts is included in accounts receivable when in an asset position or accounts payable when in a
liability position.

At June 30, 2015, the Company did not have any forward contracts.  At June 30, 2014, there were finanical
instruments with a fair value unrealized gain of $0.03 million.  

Critical Accounting Estimates 

The preparation of the Company's annual audited consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Use of judgment and estimates are
disclosed in Note 3 of the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Accounting Pronouncements

IFRIC 21 - Levies

In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21, which provides guidance on the accounting for levies within the scope of
IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets which requires that the obligating event that
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gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy, and the liability to pay the
levy is recognized progressively if the obligating events occur over a period of time.  The amendment must be
applied retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  The Company
adopted IFRIC 21 effective July 1, 2014 which did not result in a change on the Company's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

In December 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 32 to clarify the requirements relating to the offset of
financial assets and liabilities.  Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of 'currently has a legally
enforceable right to set-off' and 'simultaneous realization of settlement'.  The amendment must be applied
retrospectively and is effective for periods commencing beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  The Company
adopted IAS 32 effective July 1, 2014 which had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 36 - Impairment of Assets

In May 2013, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 36 to address disclosure information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.  The amendment must be
applied retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  The Company
adopted IAS 36 effective July 1, 2014 which had no impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Accounting standards issued but not yet applied:

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

In November 2009, the IASB issued guidance relating to the classification and measurement for financial assets
followed by requirements for financial liabilities and derecognition which were added in 2010.  IFRS 9 was
amended in 2013 to add new general hedge accounting requirements.  The standard must be applied
retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2018, with earlier application
permitted.  The Company is currently reviewing the standard to determine the potential impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the IASB published a new standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.  This
standard supersedes current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.  The standard outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.  The standard may be applied retrospectively or
with a modified transition approach and is effective for reporting periods on or after January 1, 2018, with earlier
application permitted.  The Company is currently reviewing the standard to determine the potential impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 

In May 2014, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. The amendments
were issued to improve the effectiveness of presentation and disclosure in financial reports, with the objective of
reducing immaterial note disclosures.  The amendments are to be applied prospectively and are effective for
annual periods beginning after January 1, 2016 with earlier application permitted.  The Company is currently
reviewing the amendments to determine the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 - Intangible Assets

In May 2014, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible
Assets.  The amendments clarify the factors to be considered in assessing the technical or commercial
obsolescence and the resulting depreciation period of an asset and state that a depreciation method based on
revenue is not appropriate.  The amendments are to be applied prospectively and are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2016 with earlier application permitted.  The Company is currently reviewing
the amendments to determine the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

In May 2014, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements.  The amendments clarify the
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accounting for the acquisition of interests in joint operations and require the acquirer to apply the principles of
business combinations accounting in IFRS 3 Business Combinations.  The amendments are to be applied
prospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2016 with earlier application
permitted.  The Company is currently reviewing the amendments to determine the potential impact on its
consolidated financial statements.

Outlook

For fiscal 2015, Vecima achieved revenue of $94.0 million, which was within the range of the Company’s
guidance of $90.0 million to $100.0 million.  Gross margins of 54.3% exceeded the target of 51.0% to 53.0%.
Adjusted EBITDA of $29.0 million exceeded the Company's guidance of adjusted EBITDA of $25.5 million or
higher.

Vecima's growth strategy is to remain focused on the introduction of new highly profitable products as well as to
access new markets and new customers for existing products. 

For fiscal 2016, Vecima expects:

• sales to be in the range of $100.0 million to $108.0 million;

• gross margins in the 52% to 57% range; and

• Adjusted EBITDA to be in the range of $28.0 million and $33.0 million.

Adjusted EBITDA does not have any standardized meaning prescribed by IFRS and is therefore unlikely to be
comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers.  See "Adjusted EBITDA".

Risk and Uncertainties

Vecima's financial performance, share price, business prospects and financial condition are subject to numerous
risks and uncertainties, and are affected by various factors outside the control of management.  Prior to making
any investment decision regarding Vecima, investors should carefully consider, among other things, the risks
described herein (including the factors outlined under the heading “Forward-Looking Information” above) and the
risk factors set forth in the Company's Annual Information Form for its most recently completed fiscal year, which
are incorporated by reference herein.  These risks and uncertainties are not the only ones that Vecima faces. 
Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to Vecima or that the Company currently deems
immaterial may also impair its business.  If any of such risks actually occur, the Company's financial
performance, share price, business prospects and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Shareholders of Vecima Networks Inc.: 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vecima Networks Inc., which 
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, and the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and 
consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.  
 
Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control 
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion.  
 
  



 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Vecima Networks Inc. as at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, and its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards.  
 

 
 
Chartered Professional Accountants, Chartered Accountants 
Licensed Professional Accountants 
 
September 24, 2015 
Saskatoon, Saskatchewan 



VECIMA NETWORKS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Notes

June 30,

2015

June 30,

2014

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4 $ 12,777 $ 15,282

Short-term investments 5 46,894 33,197

Accounts receivable 6 13,114 11,736

Income tax receivable 172 -

Inventories 7 22,948 24,974

Prepaid expenses 1,297 824

97,202 86,013

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 9 20,011 21,459

Assets held for resale 10 - 7

Intangible assets 11 16,107 13,377

Investment tax credit 21 24,261 26,776

Deferred tax asset 20 10,491 9,643

$ 168,072 $ 157,275

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12 $ 9,186 $ 9,697

Provisions 14 716 1,080

Income tax payable 20 - 123

Deferred revenue 2,264 2,171

Current portion of long-term debt 15 250 250

12,416 13,321

Non-current liabilities

Other long-term liabilities 13 63 143

Provisions 14 1,561 1,380

Long-term debt 15 2,708 2,958

16,748 17,802

Shareholders' equity
Share capital 16 488 171

Reserves 3,228 2,808

Retained earnings 147,608 136,494

151,324 139,473

$ 168,072 $ 157,275

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on September 24, 2015 and were signed on its
behalf by:

(signed) Vincent Gallant (signed) Scott Edmonds

Director Director
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in thousands of Canadian dollars except net income per share data)

Notes

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Sales 24 $ 94,048 $ 90,705

Cost of sales 42,967 45,831

Gross margin 51,081 44,874

Operating expenses

Research and development 9,337 8,186

Sales and marketing 6,125 5,855

General and administrative 15,496 15,802

Impairment of intangible assets 11 1,192 295

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 9 457 -

Stock-based compensation 16 502 23

Other income 17 (394) (15,175)

32,715 14,986

Operating income 18,366 29,888

Finance income 18 632 458

Foreign exchange gain 1,791 269

Income before income taxes 20,789 30,615

Income tax expense 20 5,652 6,013

Net income and total comprehensive income $ 15,137 $ 24,602

Net income per share

Basic 16 $ 0.68 $ 1.10

Diluted 16 $ 0.68 $ 1.10

Weighted average number of common shares

Shares outstanding - basic 22,348,093 22,325,125

Shares outstanding - diluted 22,404,153 22,346,667

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Share
Capital Reserves

Retained
Earnings Total

Balance as at June 30, 2013 $ 12,191 $ 2,794 $ 122,163 $ 137,148

Net income and total comprehensive income - - 24,602 24,602

Dividends - - (10,271) (10,271)

Shares issued by exercising options 37 (9) - 28

Return of capital to shareholders (12,057) - - (12,057)

Share-based payment expense - 23 - 23

Balance as at June 30, 2014 171 2,808 136,494 139,473

Net income and total comprehensive income - - 15,137 15,137

Dividends - - (4,023) (4,023)

Shares issued by exercising options 317 (82) - 235

Share-based payment expense - 502 - 502

Balance as at June 30, 2015 $ 488 $ 3,228 $ 147,608 $ 151,324

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands of Canadian dollars)

Notes

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income and total comprehensive income $ 15,137 $ 24,602

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash from operating activities 22 13,150 (2,167)

(Decrease) in other long-term liabilities (80) (163)

(Decrease) increase in provisions (183) 189

(Decrease) increase in investment tax credit (942) 6,308

Net change in non-cash working capital relating to operations 23 295 (1,353)

Interest paid (130) (189)

Interest received 735 657

Income tax received - 4,695

Income tax paid (844) (1,003)

27,138 31,576

Cash flows used in investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9 (2,254) (2,979)

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 19 13,502

Proceeds from the sale of assets held for resale 500 4,078

Purchase of short-term investments (27,362) (38,958)

Proceeds on sale of short-term investments 13,665 30,460

Deferred development costs 11 (8,807) (6,929)

Purchase of indefinite and finite-life intangible assets 11 (1,366) (44)

(25,605) (870)

Cash flows used in financing activities

Proceeds from shares issued through exercised options 16 235 27

Return of capital to shareholders 16 - (12,057)

Dividends paid (4,023) (10,271)

Repayment of long-term debt (250) (271)

(4,038) (22,572)

(Decrease) increase in cash during the year (2,505) 8,134

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 15,282 7,148

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 4 $ 12,777 $ 15,282

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Vecima Networks Inc. ("Vecima" or the "Company") is a company continued under the Canadian Business
Corporations Act and commenced operations in 1988.  The Company's registered office is located at 700
West George Street, 25th Floor, Vancouver, B.C., V7Y 1B3.  The Company's common shares are traded on
the Toronto Stock Exchange under the trading symbol "VCM". 

The Company designs, manufactures and sells products that enable broadband access to cable, wireless
and telephony networks.  Vecima hardware products incorporate embedded software developed by Vecima
to meet the requirements of next-generation, high-speed digital networks.  Vecima solutions allow service
providers to bridge the final network segment that connects a system directly to end-users, commonly
referred to as "the last mile", by overcoming the bottleneck resulting from insufficient carrying capacity in
legacy last-mile infrastructures.  YourLink Inc. ("YourLink"), a company controlled by Vecima, operates
several small cable and broadband wireless service providers and owns certain licences to commercial
radio spectrum.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and as
set out in the CPA Canada Handbook.

These audited consolidated financial statements were prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for certain items not carried at historical costs as discussed in the applicable accounting policies.

These audited consolidated financial statements are based on IFRS issued and outstanding as of June 30,
2015. The Company's Board of Directors authorized the statements for issue and approved the policies the
Company adopted in its consolidated financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2015 on September
24, 2015.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS and include the
following measurement bases and significant accounting policies:

Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, Spectrum
Signal Processing (USA) Inc., Vecima Telecom India Private Ltd., 6105971 Canada Inc. and YourLink Inc.,
a company controlled by Vecima.

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits that have an original maturity of less
than three months.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION continued

(c) Revenue Recognition 

The Company earns revenue from the sale of goods and the rendering of services.  Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for these goods supplied and services rendered
net of taxes, freight, rebate, estimated returns or trade discounts.  When a sale consists of multiple
components where delivery is over different periods of time, the Company separates the arrangement into
its component accounting units.  The consideration of the arrangement is allocated to the separate
identifiable components based on the relative fair value of each component.  The appropriate revenue
recognition policy, outlined below, is applied to each component.

Revenue from product sales

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the following criteria are met:

• the significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred;

• the Company has no ongoing involvement or control over the goods;

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the

Company; and 

• the cost incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably.

This typically occurs upon shipment of the goods provided that all contractual obligations have been met.

Revenue from rendering of service

Services are comprised of cable, telephony and internet services, after-sales support, consulting,
construction contracts and rental income.  Service revenue is recognized as revenue when the following
criteria have been met:

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

• it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;

• the stage of completion can be measured reliably; and

• the related costs can be measured reliably.

Service revenues from cable, telephony, and internet are recognized in the period the customer receives the
service.  Subscriber connection fees received from the customers are deferred and amortized on a straight-
line basis over four years (the estimated average customer contract life).  The cost of connecting a home is
capitalized and amortized over the same four-year period.  After sales support is deferred and recognized
over the period during which the the service is performed on a straight-line basis. Revenue from consulting
is recognized when the services are provided using the costs incurred to date compared to the total
estimated costs to determine stage of completion, as contracts consisting of customized systems are within
the scope of International Accounting Standard ("IAS") 11 - Construction Contracts where revenue is
recognized using the percentage-of-completion method.  Revenue received in advance of the product being 
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION continued

(c) Revenue Recognition continued

delivered or service being provided is recognized as deferred revenue.

Rental income

Rental income from operating leases on properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

(d) Inventories 

Inventories consist of raw materials, work-in-progress and finished goods. Inventories of raw materials,
which consist of parts, components and subscriber equipment, are recorded at the lower of cost and net
realizable value, with cost being determined on a first-in, first-out basis.  Work-in-progress inventory is
recorded at the lower of cost and replacement cost.  Finished goods inventory, which consists of finished
products, is recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value.  

Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and manufactured products include direct materials, direct
labour and a reasonable allocation of overhead costs.  Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated cost necessary to
make the sale.

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment
losses and related government assistance received.  Costs include expenditures that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset, including any financing expense for capital investment projects under
construction.  When significant components of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives.  Depreciation is
provided generally on a declining-balance basis over the estimated useful lives assuming that no residual
value exists.  Residual value is the estimated amount that the Company would currently obtain from the
disposal of the asset after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age
and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.  Both the residual value and the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually.  Repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged
to operating expenses as incurred.

(f) Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.  Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.  Intangible assets are assessed as either indefinite-life or finite-life assets.

(i) Indefinite-life Intangible Assets

Indefinite-life intangible assets consist of spectrum licenses, goodwill and other licenses.

Spectrum licenses and other licenses are recorded at cost, which represents the fair value at the date
of acquisition.  Goodwill is an indefinite life intangible asset that is acquired as part of business
acquisitions and recorded as the excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION continued

(f) Intangible Assets continued

Spectrum licenses and other licenses are granted for a period of ten years by the relevant
government agency.  There is the option of renewal for little to no cost to the Company.  It is expected
that the demand and use for these licenses will continue to grow in the foreseeable future.  As a
result, these assets are assessed as having indefinite lives and as such, are not subject to
amortization.

(ii) Finite-life Intangible Assets

Subscriber acquisition costs, acquired in business acquisitions, are amortized on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of ten years.  Patents and intellectual property are amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of five years.

(g) Research and Development 

Research costs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred.  Development costs are capitalized and
deferred as finite-life intangible assets when the Company can demonstrate:

• technical feasibility of completing the development so that it will be available for use or sale;

• its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset;

• how the asset will generate future economic benefits;

• the availability of resources to complete the asset;

• the ability to reliably measure the expenditure during development; and

• its ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

Deferred development costs are amortized on a straight-line basis for up to four years, representing the
estimated average life cycle of the associated products.

The Company develops new electronic communications products for the cable and telecommunication
markets.  Development costs include direct salaries, materials and an allocation of general and
administrative overhead, which relate to products being developed less applicable government assistance
and investment tax credits claimed.

Costs relating to projects which are not commercialized or which cease to be marketable are charged
against income in the year in which this determination is made.

The Company earns investment tax credits on eligible Scientific Research and Experimental Development
("SR&ED") expenses incurred.  These investment tax credits are recorded in the accounts as a reduction of
the costs to which they relate and are amortized over the same period as the deferred development costs
are amortized.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION continued

(h) Leases 

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date.  A lease is an arrangement that conveys a right to use an asset for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments.  A finance lease transfers
substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership from the lessor to the lessee.  All other leases are
operating leases.

(i) Obligations Under Leases

Leases that transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Company are recorded as finance
leases.  The leased asset is recognized at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments, plus any initial direct costs of
the lessee, if any.  A corresponding amount is recognized as a finance lease liability.  The capitalized
value of the leased asset is amortized on a declining basis over its estimated useful life.  The finance
lease liability is reduced by rental payments net of imputed interest, which is charged against income.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense over the lease term.

(i) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of the respective assets.  Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

To the extent the funds are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, the
Company capitalizes the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the period.  To the extent
the funds are from general borrowings, the Company determines borrowing costs eligible for capitalization
by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in net income in the period in which they are incurred.

(j) Impairment 

The Company reviews, at each reporting date, whether there are any indications that an asset may be
impaired.  If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount, which is the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and its value
in use.  Value in use is the estimated future cash flows discounted to their present value using a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Impairment is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is greater
than the recoverable amount.  Impairment losses are recognized in the period in which it occurs in the
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

Indefinite-life intangible assets are assessed for impairment at the lowest CGU level in the fourth quarter of
every year and when events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset might be impaired.

Finite-life intangible assets are assessed for impairment indicators at each reporting date. In addition,
intangible assets with a finite-life which are not yet available for use, such as deferred development costs for
products still under development, are tested for impairment at least annually.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION continued

(j) Impairment continued

Goodwill representing the excess of purchase price over fair value of the net identifiable assets of acquired
businesses is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when an event or circumstance occurs that
indicates that goodwill might be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amount of each CGU to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than its carrying amount an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment losses relating to goodwill
cannot be reversed in future periods.

For assets other than goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indications exist, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. Reversals are recognized in the
period in which it occurs in the expense categories consistent with the function of the asset.

(k) Income Taxes 

The Company follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, current
income taxes are recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the current year. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences between the tax and accounting bases of
assets and liabilities as well as for the benefit of losses and investment tax credits available to be carried
forward to future years for tax purposes that are more likely than not to be realized. The amounts recognized
in respect of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are based upon the expected timing of the reversal of
temporary differences or usage of tax losses and application of the substantively enacted tax rates at the
time of reversal or usage.

The Company accounts for changes in substantively enacted tax rates affecting deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in full in the period in which the changes were substantively enacted. The Company accounts
for the changes in the estimates of prior year(s) tax balances as estimate revisions in the period in which the
change in estimate arose. The Company has selected these methods as the presentation on the statement
of financial position is more consistent with the liability method of accounting for income taxes.

The Company incurs research and development expenditures that are eligible for investment tax credits.
The recorded investment tax credits are based on management's estimates of amounts expected to be
recovered and are subject to audit by taxation authorities. The investment tax credits for research and
development are reflected as a reduction in the cost of the assets or expenses to which it relates.

(l) Foreign Currency Transactions 

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is also the
parent entity’s functional currency. Each entity of the Company determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using the functional currency of the
parent.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rate in effect at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
closing exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at cost are
translated using the historical exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Revenues and expenses are
translated using average rates for the period, except for amortization, which is translated on the same basis
as the related asset. Exchange gains and losses are reflected in net income.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION continued

(m) Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.  Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.  Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Company’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and short-term
investments.  Cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable are measured at amortized cost. The
carrying amount in the consolidated statement of financial position is at historical cost which approximates
the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. Short-term investments are classified at fair
value through profit or loss and the carrying value in the consolidated statement of financial position is at fair
value.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks from fluctuations in exchange rates.
The most frequently used derivative products are foreign currency forward purchase contracts. The
Company’s policy is not to utilize financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Derivative
financial instruments are held for trading and are recognized on the consolidated statement of financial
position at their fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in net income in operating expenses other
income.

The Company's financial liabilities are comprised of accounts payable, accrued liabilities, other payables and
long-term debt. These financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, normally being the transaction
price plus directly attributable transaction costs. Transaction costs related to financial assets or financial
liabilities classified at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in income. Regular
purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for on the trade date.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting
date. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.
Individually significant receivables are considered impaired when they are past due and there is objective
evidence that the counterparty may default. The receivables that are not individually significant are reviewed
for impairment in groups, based on historical rates. The impaired amount is recorded through the allowance
for doubtful accounts into general and administrative expense.

(n) Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The fair value of financial instruments is generally determined as follows:

The fair value of long-term debt with fixed rates of interest is estimated using discounted cash flows based
on current rates of interest for similar lending arrangements. The fair values of derivatives are based on
values quoted by the counterparties to the agreements.  The fair value of short-term financial assets and
liabilities approximate their respective carrying values due to the short term nature of these financial
instruments.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION continued

(o) Provisions 

Provisions are recorded when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and when
a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.  Where the Company expects some or all
of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

(i) Warranty Provision

The warranty provision consists of estimated parts and labour costs expected to be incurred for future

product repairs provided under the Company's two-year warranty obligations.  The provisions are
recorded when the product is sold and are based on contract terms, current sales levels and current
information about prior claims and returns for all products sold.  Because new products incorporating
complex technologies are continuously introduced, changes in these estimates could result in
additional allowances or changes to recorded allowances in future periods.

(ii) Asset Retirement Obligations

The asset retirement obligations are legal and constructive obligations that arise from the construction
of telecommunication and broadcasting networks constructed on leased property.  The retirement
obligations costs are provided at the present value of the expected costs to settle the obligation using
estimated cash flows and are recognized as part of the cost of that particular asset.  The cash flows
are discounted at a risk-free rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation.  The unwinding of the present value discount is expensed as
incurred and recognized in the income statement as a finance cost.  The estimated future costs of
retirement are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted as appropriate.  Changes in
the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of
the asset and liability.

(p) Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company has a stock option plan for directors, officers, and employees of the Company. The options to
purchase shares must be issued at not less than the fair value at the date of grant. Any consideration paid
on the exercise of stock options, together with any share capital reserves recorded at the date the options
vested, is credited to share capital. The Company calculates the fair value of stock-based compensation
awarded to offerees using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The cost of the options granted is
recognized and expensed over the vesting period in which service conditions are fulfilled. When an offeree
leaves the company, their vested options expire in 90 days. Forfeitures are estimated throughout the vesting
period based on past experience and future expectations, and adjusted upon actual option vesting. No
expense is recognized for options that do not ultimately vest.
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VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION continued

(q) Treasury Shares 

Equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognized in income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration paid is recognized
within shareholders' equity. Treasury shares are immediately cancelled upon acquisition.

Changes in Accounting Policies 

IFRIC 21 - Levies

In May 2013, the IASB issued IFRIC 21, which provides guidance on the accounting for levies within the
scope of IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets which requires that the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy, and the
liability to pay the levy is recognized progressively if the obligating events occur over a period of time.  The
amendment must be applied retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2014.  The Company adopted IFRIC 21 effective July 1, 2014 which did not result in a change on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

In December 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 32 to clarify the requirements relating to the offset
of financial assets and liabilities.  Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of 'currently has a legally
enforceable right to set-off' and 'simultaneous realization of settlement'.  The amendment must be applied
retrospectively and is effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.  The Company adopted
IAS 32 effective July 1, 2014 which had no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 36 - Impairment of Assets

In May 2013, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 36 to address disclosure information about the
recoverable amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.  The
amendment must be applied retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2014.  The Company adopted IAS 36 effective July 1, 2014 which had no impact on the Company's
consolidated financial statements.

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Applied: 

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

In November 2009, the IASB issued guidance relating to the classification and measurement for financial
assets followed by requirements for financial liabilities and derecognition which were added in 2010.  IFRS 9
was amended in 2013 to add new general hedge accounting requirements.  The standard must be applied
retrospectively and is effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2018, with earlier application
permitted.  The Company is currently reviewing the standard to determine the potential impact on its
consolidated financial statements.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION continued

Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Applied: continued

IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the IASB published a new standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. This
standard supersedes current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.  The standard outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to
use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.  The standard may be applied
retrospectively or with a modified transition approach and is effective for reporting periods on or after
January 1, 2018, with earlier application permitted.  The Company is currently reviewing the standard to
determine the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

In May 2014, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.  The
amendments were issued to improve the effectiveness of presentation and disclosure in financial reports,
with the objective of reducing immaterial note disclosures.  The amendments are to be applied prospectively
and are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2016 with earlier application permitted.  The
Company is currently reviewing the amendments to determine the potential impact on its consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 - Intangible Assets

In May 2014, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible
Assets.  The amendments clarify the factors to be considered in assessing the technical or commercial
obsolescence and the resulting depreciation period of an asset and state that a depreciation method based
on revenue is not appropriate.  The amendments are to be applied prospectively and are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2016 with earlier application permitted.  The Company is currently
reviewing the amendments to determine the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 11 - Joint Arrangements

In May 2014, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements.  The amendments clarify the
accounting for the acquisition of interests in joint operations and require the acquirer to apply the principles
of business combinations accounting in IFRS 3 Business Combinations.  The amendments are to be applied
prospectively and are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2016 with earlier application
permitted.  The Company is currently reviewing the amendments to determine the potential impact on its
consolidated financial statements.
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3. USE OF JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period.  Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that require material adjustments in future periods to the carrying amount of the affected asset or liability.

(a) Use of Judgment

Functional Currency

The Company assessed the primary economic environment in which it operates (Vecima Networks Inc.,
Vecima Networks Pacific Pty., Spectrum Signal Processing (USA) Inc., and Vecima Telecom India Private
Ltd.) by considering factors such as the currency for which sales of goods and services are denominated
and settled, the country whose competitive forces and regulations mainly determine the sales prices of its
goods and services and the currency that mainly influences labour, material and other costs of providing
goods and services.  Sales are primarily transacted in U.S. dollars.  The cost of material is denominated in
both Canadian and U.S. dollars.  The labour cost is denominated fully in Canadian dollars.  Management
pays close attention to gross margin, and the setting of prices in U.S. dollars is influenced by costs which
are primarily influenced by the Canadian dollar.  Because of the mix of indicators for its primary economic
environment, the Company assessed the secondary indicators of finance activities and receipts from
operations.  Equity and debt financing activities are both denominated in Canadian dollars and receipts from
operations are retained primarily in Canadian dollars.  The Company assessed YourLink Inc. separately as
the primary economic environment is almost entirely transacted in Canadian dollars. Based on all the
factors, the Company determined that the functional currency for the entities listed above should be
Canadian dollars.

YourLink Inc.

In December 2004, the Company undertook transactions resulting in the Company holding 100 percent of
the non-voting participating shares in Yourlink Inc. The Chairman and a Director of the Board of the
Company hold the voting non-participating shares. However, the non-voting participating shares owned by
the Company in substance have the rights to obtain all the benefits from operations and retains all the
residual value related to YourLink Inc.. Based on these facts and circumstances, management concluded
that the Company controls this entity and, therefore, consolidates the entity in its financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company owns property that is being held for future development as well as holds dual use properties.
Dual use properties are used for operations with the unused sections rented out under operating type
leases.  Management has reviewed the classification of these properties between property, plant and
equipment and investment properties. Based on management’s intended use of these properties, all
properties have been classified as property, plant and equipment.

(b)Use of Estimates

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of a tangible asset, intangible asset or cash-generating unit,
including goodwill, exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and
its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model, where the cash flow
is derived from the budget extrapolated over the next three to five years, exclusive of restructuring activities
or significant future investments to enhance the asset's performance. The recoverable amount is most 

Vecima Networks Inc.    2015 Annual Report      Page 40



VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

sensitive to the discount rate used as well as the expected future cash inflows and growth rate used to
extrapolate beyond the three to five years. The assumptions used to determine recoverable amounts are
discussed further in Note 25.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company measures the cost of stock-based compensation transactions with employees and directors
by reference to the fair value of the options issued at the date they were granted. Estimated fair value for
stock-based compensation transactions requires determining the most appropriate valuation model, which is
dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determining the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option and the volatility.
The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for stock based compensation are disclosed in
Note 16.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management estimates are
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with tax planning strategies. 

Deferred Development Costs

Development costs are capitalized in accordance with the accounting policy in Note 2. Initial capitalization of
costs is based on management’s judgment that technological and economical feasibility is confirmed,
usually when the research project is approved to begin development by the Company’s department of
research and development. In determining the amount to be capitalized, management makes assumptions
regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discounted rates to be applied and the
expected period of benefits.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of service contracts and upfront customer activation and connection fees where
billings are recorded and received prior to rendering of the associated service. Billings for services are
recognized as revenue in the period in which the services are provided. Upfront customer activation and
connection fees are recognized over the expected term of the customer relationship.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Asset retirement obligations are based on retirement occurring in twenty to thirty years from when they were
put in service which is management's best estimate of when the retirement will occur.  This provision may
be influenced by changes in estimates of future retirement costs and changes in the risk-free discount rate.

Other Areas

Other key areas of estimation where management is required to make difficult, complex or subjective
estimates, often as a result of matters that are inherently uncertain, are the allowance for doubtful accounts,
allowance for inventory obsolescence, the capitalization of overhead, useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, useful lives of intangible assets, valuation of goodwill, revenue recognition, asset retirement
obligations, provisions, investment tax credits, contingent liabilities and the fair value of financial assets.
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4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

June 30,

2015

June 30,

2014

Cash $ 8,193 $ 14,040

Cash equivalents 4,584 1,242

$ 12,777 $ 15,282

The Company maintains an authorized line of credit of $15,000 (June 30, 2014 - $15,000) of which $nil was
drawn on June 30, 2015 (June 30, 2014 - $nil).  The line of credit is secured by a general security
agreement and is limited to a maximum amount available of 70% of accounts receivable and 40% of
inventory (to a maximum of $7,000). Interest on the outstanding line of credit is calculated at prime plus
0.5%. The prime rate at June 30, 2015 was 2.85% (June 30, 2014 - 3.00%).

5. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments are measured at fair value and changes are reported through the statement of
comprehensive income.  The fair value of the short-term investments approximates their carrying value for
the year ended June 30, 2015.

6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

June 30,

2015

June 30,

2014

Trade receivables $ 13,063 $ 11,696

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (107) (165)

12,956 11,531

Goods and services tax 144 168

Other receivables 14 37

$ 13,114 $ 11,736

All amounts are short-term. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable
approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature of the receivables.

Included in trade receivables is the allowance for doubtful accounts used to record the impairment of
accounts receivables prior to being written off.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Opening allowance for doubtful accounts, July 1, 2013 $ 196

Charge 253

Write-offs (265)

Reverse allowance (19)

Balance, June 30, 2014 165

Charge 270

Write-offs (326)

Reverse allowance (2)

Balance, June 30, 2015 $ 107
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7. INVENTORIES

 June 30,

2015

 June 30,

2014

Raw materials $ 9,706 $ 10,439

Work in progress 4,423 4,310

Finished goods 8,819 10,225

$ 22,948 $ 24,974

During the year ended June 30, 2015, inventories of $36,285 (year ended June 30, 2014 - $39,849) were
expensed through cost of sales.  Write-downs of inventory for the year ended June 30, 2015 were $1,740
(year ended June 30, 2014 - $1,315) and were included in cost of sales. Reversals of write-downs were $nil
during the year ended June 30, 2015 ($3 for the year ended June 30, 2014).  The carrying amount of
inventory recorded at net realizable value was $1,357 at June 30, 2015 (June 30, 2014 - $1,741) with the
remaining inventory recorded at cost. 

8. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TO MANAGE FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

As at June 30, 2015, the Company had $nil US dollars (USD) in foreign currency forward contracts that have
the effect of fixing the conversion of USD (June 30, 2014 - $3,300).

Changes in fair value of these instruments are included in finance income in the current year.  As at June
30, 2015, the Company has an unrealized net gain of $nil (June 30, 2014 - $26 net gain) on outstanding
forward purchase contracts.

Derivative financial instruments are included in accounts receivable (June 30, 2014 - accounts receivable) in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Vecima Networks Inc.    2015 Annual Report      Page 43



VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land

Land
improvements

& building

Lab,
operating &
production
equipment

Other
equipment Total

Cost

At July 1, 2013 $ 1,308 $ 17,814 $ 36,421 $ 13,088 $ 68,631

Additions 117 423 1,708 731 2,979

Disposals (304) (8,623) (809) (123) (9,859)

At June 30, 2014 1,121 9,614 37,320 13,696 61,751

Additions - 250 1,427 577 2,254

Disposals - (5) (1,436) (262) (1,703)

At June 30, 2015 $ 1,121 $ 9,859 $ 37,311 $ 14,011 $ 62,302

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

At July 1, 2013 $ 8,364 $ 24,404 $ 10,857 $ 43,625

Depreciation charge for the year 315 2,420 582 3,317

Disposals (5,820) (725) (105) (6,650)

At June 30, 2014 2,859 26,099 11,334 40,292

Depreciation charge for the year 282 2,169 609 3,060

Disposals (1) (1,275) (242) (1,518)

Impairment losses recognized in
net income - 457 - 457

At June 30, 2015 $ 3,140 $ 27,450 $ 11,701 $ 42,291

Carrying amount

At June 30, 2014 $ 1,121 $ 6,755 $ 11,221 $ 2,362 $ 21,459

At June 30, 2015 $ 1,121 $ 6,719 $ 9,861 $ 2,310 $ 20,011

The following estimated useful lives have been applied to property, plant and equipment assets at June 30,
2015 and June 30, 2014:

Estimated useful life

Land improvements and building 40 years

Lab, operating and production equipment 10 to 30 years

Other equipment(1) 1 to 30 years

(1)Other equipment includes furniture, computer hardware, automotive equipment, and an asset retirement
obligation.
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment included in cost of sales, research and development and in
general and administrative expenses is as follows:

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Cost of sales $ 477 $ 247

Research and development 204 197

General and administrative 2,379 2,873

$ 3,060 $ 3,317

An impairment loss of $457 has been recorded in the year ended June 30, 2015 (2014 - $nil).  Further
information about this impairment loss included in Note 25. 

Other equipment includes a long-term asset retirement obligation, net of amortization, of $972 as at June
30, 2015 (June 30, 2014 - $835).

At June 30, 2015, the Company had other equipment under construction totalling $183 (June 30, 2014 -
$625).  These assets are not yet being depreciated because they are under construction and not yet in use.

At June 30, 2015, the carrying value of assets held under finance leases for equipment, which includes
automobiles, was $175 (June 30, 2014 - $328).

Leased assets are typically pledged as security for the related finance lease.

10. ASSETS HELD FOR RESALE

As at June 30, 2014, the Company had certain spectrum licences that were held for potential future
expansion of wireless services.  It was determined that the licences were no longer required and were made
available for sale.  These assets were sold during the year ended June 30, 2015. These licenses were part
of the Services Segment total assets as at June 30, 2014.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Indefinite-life
intangible assets Finite-life intangible assets

Goodwill

Spectrum
Licenses
and Other
Licenses

Subscriber
Acquisition

Costs Patents
Intellectual

Property

Deferred
Development

Costs Total

Cost

At July 1, 2013 $ 99 $ 647 $ 1,241 $ 242 $ - $ 18,183 $20,412

Additions - - - 44 - 6,929 6,973

Investment tax credits - - - - - (2,798) (2,798)

Writedown, fully amortized - - - - - (208) (208)

Disposals - (7) (1,099) - - - (1,106)

At June 30, 2014 99 640 142 286 - 22,106 23,273

Additions - - - 24 1,342 8,807 10,173

Investment tax credits - - - - - (3,001) (3,001)

Writedown, fully amortized - - - - - (1,516) (1,516)

Disposals - (209) - - - - (209)

At June 30, 2015 $ 99 $ 431 $ 142 $ 310 $ 1,342 $ 26,396 $28,720

Amortization and impairment

At July 1, 2013                    $ - $ - $ 1,154 $ 176 $ - $ 6,906 $ 8,236

Amortization recognized      - - 78 29 - 2,565 2,672

Writedown, fully amortized   - - - - - (208) (208)

Disposals   - - (1,099) - - - (1,099)

Impairment losses recognized in
profit or loss   - - - - - 295 295

At June 30, 2014 - - 133 205 - 9,558 9,896

Amortization recognized - - 9 33 67 2,932 3,041

Writedown, fully amortized - - - - - (1,516) (1,516)

Impairment losses
recognized in profit or
loss - - - - - 1,192 1,192

At June 30, 2015 $ - $ - $ 142 $ 238 $ 67 $ 12,166 $12,613

Net book value

At June 30, 2014 $ 99 $ 640 $ 9 $ 81 $ - $ 12,548 $13,377

At June 30, 2015 $ 99 $ 431 $ - $ 72 $ 1,275 $ 14,230 $16,107

Amortization of subscriber acquisition costs and patents is recognized in general and administrative
expenses.  Amortization of deferred development costs is recognized in research and development 
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

expenses.  Impairment of deferred development costs is included in impairment of intangible assets.

The aggregate amount of research and development expenditure during the year ending June 30, 2015 was
$15,677 (2014 - $13,227).  

During the current year, no impairments were noted for goodwill or other indefinite life intangible assets
(2014 - $nil).  

The Company recorded impairment losses of $1,192 during the year ended June 30, 2015 (2014 - $295) for
deferred development costs that relate to products or projects that are no longer being pursued by the
Company.

12. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

June 30,

2015

June 30,

2014

Accounts payable $ 4,144 $ 4,264

Accrued liabilities 4,961 5,268

Short-term finance lease liabilities 81 165

$ 9,186 $ 9,697

The carrying value of accounts payable, accrued liabilities and short-term finance lease liabilities are
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value due to their short-term nature.

13. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

June 30,

2015

June 30,

2014

Finance lease liabilities $ 144 $ 308

Current portion (81) (165)

$ 63 $ 143

Finance Leases

Vecima has numerous individual finance leases for automobiles and production equipment.  Typically,
equipment leased under finance lease has bargain purchase options or a transfer of ownership at the end of
the lease.
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13. OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES continued

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum
lease payment are as follows:

June 30,

2015

June 30,

2014

Minimum
lease

payments

Present
value of

lease
payments

Minimum
lease

payments

Present
value of

lease
payments

Within one year $ 89 $ 81 $ 185 $ 165

After one year but not more than five years 68 63 156 143

More than five years - - - -

Total minimum lease payments 157 144 341 308

Less amounts representing finance charges 13 - 33 -

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 144 $ 144 $ 308 $ 308

14. PROVISIONS

Warranty

Asset
Retirement
Obligation Other Total

At July 1, 2013 $ 675 $ 1,314 $ 282 $ 2,271

Additions during the year 634 38 373 1,045

Amounts utilized (642) - (242) (884)

Unwinding of discount and imputed interest - 28 - 28

At June 30, 2014 $ 667 $ 1,380 $ 413 $ 2,460

Additions during the year 571 218 144 933

Amounts utilized (700) (7) (379) (1,086)

Unwinding of discount and imputed interest - (30) - (30)

At June 30, 2015 $ 538 $ 1,561 $ 178 $ 2,277

Less current provision 538 - 178 716

Long-term provision $ - $ 1,561 $ - $ 1,561

Warranty provision is based on the Company's prior years' experience which may not occur on a go forward
basis.
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15. LONG-TERM DEBT

 June 30,

2015

 June 30,

2014

Term credit from a Canadian chartered bank, repayable in monthly
installments of $21 principal and interest at prime, (2.85% at June
30, 2015), expiring in October 2016, collateralized by a general
security agreement.  The Company has an authorized loan
amount of $3,792. $ 2,958 $ 3,208

Less current portion (250) (250)

$ 2,708 $ 2,958

Long-term debt is recorded at amortized cost.  The Company's long-term debt is at floating interest rates
and the carrying value of the principal is considered to be fair value.

Future principal payments for the fiscal years ending are as follows assuming current terms and conditions
continue at renewal:

2016 $ 250

2017 250

2018 250

2019 250

2020 250

Remaining 1,708

$ 2,958

16. SHARE CAPITAL

(in thousands of Canadian dollars except common share data)

(a) Share capital  

The Company has the following authorized share capital: an unlimited number of common shares with no
par value and an unlimited number of preferred shares with no par value.  The Company does not hold
treasury shares, as all shares purchased are immediately cancelled.  The table below provides details of
common shares outstanding and their carrying value:

Number of Shares

Carrying

Value

Balance, July 1, 2013 22,322,422 $ 12,191

Shares issued by exercising options 5,926 37

Return of capital to shareholders - (12,057)

Balance, June 30, 2014 22,328,348 171

Shares issued by exercising options 48,717 317

Balance, June 30, 2015 22,377,065 $ 488
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16. SHARE CAPITAL continued

(a) Share capital continued 

The Company issued 48,717 shares through the exercise of options during the year ended June 30, 2015
(June 30, 2014 - 5,926).

Each holder of a common share is entitled to one vote per share at shareholder meetings and to receive
dividends, as and when declared by the Board of Directors.  There are no pre-emptive, retraction, surrender,
redemption, repurchase for cancellation or conversion rights attached to the common shares.  

The preferred shares may be issued from time to time with designation, rights, privileges, restrictions and
conditions, which will be determined by the Board of Directors at the time of issue (none issued).

The following table sets forth the calculation of basic and diluted net income per share:

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Net income: basic and diluted $ 15,137 $ 24,602

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Basic 22,348,093 22,325,125

Dilutive stock options 56,060 21,542

Diluted 22,404,153 22,346,667

Net income per share: basic $ 0.68 $ 1.10

Net income per share: diluted $ 0.68 $ 1.10

Stock options could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future.  Options to purchase 164,556
common shares were vested and outstanding at June 30, 2015 (June 30, 2014 - 154,200).  Dilutive stock
options are calculated using the treasury stock method.

(b) Reserves 

Reserves within shareholders' equity represent equity settled employee benefits reserve.
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16. SHARE CAPITAL continued

(c) Stock option plan 

On September 15, 2005, the Company established a stock option plan pursuant to which options to acquire
common shares may be issued to officers, directors and employees of the Company.  The term, vesting
period, exercise price, and number of common shares, relating to each option will be determined by the
Company's Board of Directors at the time options are granted, but will not be more favourable than those
permitted under applicable securities legislation and/or regulation.  Typically, options are granted for six
years with vesting based on either time-based service or performance and are equity settled.  The
Company's stock option plan is subject to the rules and policies of any stock exchange on which the
common shares are listed.  The total number of common shares of the Company that will be issued
pursuant to the Company's stock option plan will not exceed 10% of the issued and outstanding shares of
the Company at any given time.  Options granted under the Company's stock option plan are not
assignable.

The changes in options and the number of options outstanding for the years ended June 30, 2015 and June
30, 2014 are as follows:

Number of options
Weighted average

exercise price

Outstanding, July 1, 2013 210,198 $ 6.79

Exercised (5,926) 4.83

Expired and forfeited (29,361) 8.42

Outstanding, June 30, 2014 174,911 6.54

Granted 388,500 8.62

Exercised (48,717) 4.84

Expired and forfeited (55,196) 6.53

Outstanding, June 30, 2015 459,498 $ 8.23

Vested and exercisable 164,556 $ 7.71

At June 30, 2015, the exercise prices range from $2.72 to $19.34 with the weighted average exercise price
being $8.23.  The options outstanding at June 30, 2015 have a weighted average contractual life of 4.85
years.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Number

Weighted

Average

Remaining Life

Weighted

Average

Exercise Price Number

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price

$2.72 to $3.00 4,020 2.46 $ 2.72 3,516 $ 2.72

$3.01 to $5.00 36,711 2.46 4.16 30,211 4.08

$5.01 to $7.00 19,242 0.75 5.74 18,929 5.75

$7.01 to $10.00 383,500 5.48 8.62 95,875 8.62

$10.01 to $19.34 16,025 0.73 12.55 16,025 12.55

459,498 4.85 $ 8.23 164,556 $ 7.71

Vecima Networks Inc.    2015 Annual Report      Page 51



VECIMA NETWORKS INC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended June 30, 2015
(in thousands of Canadian dollars except as otherwise noted)

16. SHARE CAPITAL continued

(d) Stock-based compensation 

For all stock options granted, the Company determined compensation expense based on the estimated fair
values at the grant date of the stock options using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.  The estimated
fair value of the stock options is amortized to stock-based compensation over the options' vesting period.
The stock-based compensation expense was $502 for the year ended June 30, 2015 (June 30, 2014 - $23).

The weighted average estimated fair value for the common share options granted in the year was $1,118.
Management used the following assumptions within the Black-Scholes and binomial option-pricing model:

Weighted average share price $ 8.62

Expected option life 6.01 years

Risk-free rate of return %1.71

Volatility factor %43.66

Expected dividends %2.08

17. OTHER INCOME

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Gain on sale of assets held for resale $ 493 $ 3,736

(Loss) gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (161) 10,293

(Loss) gain on disposal of indefinite-life intangible assets (209) -

Contract cancellation fee - 640

Lease revenue 252 463

Other 19 43

$ 394 $ 15,175

18. FINANCE INCOME

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Interest income $ 735 $ 672

Operating line fees (16) (14)

Revolving term credit interest (93) (100)

Finance lease interest (17) (21)

Unwinding of discount and imputed interest 30 (28)

Other (7) (51)

$ 632 $ 458
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19. ADDITIONAL EXPENSE INFORMATION

Depreciation and amortization included in cost of sales and operating expenses 

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment $ 3,060 $ 3,317

Amortization of finite-life intangible assets 109 107

Amortization of deferred development costs 2,932 2,565

$ 6,101 $ 5,989

Employee benefit expenses included in cost of sales and operating expenses 

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Wages and salaries $ 29,124 $ 29,844

Employee deferred profit sharing plan 970 1,080

Health care benefits 1,801 1,576

$ 31,895 $ 32,500
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20. INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary and non-current carry-forward differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the associated
amounts used for income tax purposes.  Significant components of the Company's tax assets and liabilities
are as follows:

June 30,

2015

June 30,

2014

Tax assets

Provision for warranties $ 169 $ 168

Unrealized foreign exchange losses - 51

Non-capital losses 1,525 1,529

Property, plant and equipment 4,328 3,924

Research and development expenditures 4,829 4,032

Asset retirement obligation 418 370

Other 9 32

11,278 10,106

Tax liabilities

Unrealized foreign exchange gains 125 -

Intangibles 403 463

Other 259 -

787 463

Net total $ 10,491 $ 9,643

Significant components of the provision for income taxes attributable to operations are as follows:

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Current income taxes $ 6,500 $ 7,927

Deferred income taxes (848) (1,914)

$ 5,652 $ 6,013
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20. INCOME TAXES continued

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the Canadian
federal and provincial substantively enacted income tax rates.  The reasons for the differences are as
follows:

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Income before income taxes $ 20,789 $ 30,615

Substantively enacted tax rates %25.8 %25.9

Tax computed at substantively enacted rates 5,354 7,939

Differences in substantively enacted future rates - (933)

Non-deductible stock compensation expense 129 6

Non-taxable portion of capital gains (60) (610)

Non-taxable portion of cumulative eligible capital gain - (482)

Non-deductible expenses 95 89

Other 134 4

Income tax provision $ 5,652 $ 6,013

The tax assets include $6,059 (2014 - $6,059) of Canadian non-capital losses.

21. INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Company recorded investment tax credits of $3,510 (2014 -
$3,301), with a $7 (2014 - $10) reduction of property, plant and equipment, $3,001 (2014 - $2,732) reduction
of deferred development costs and $502 (2014 - $559) reduction of research and development expenses.
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22. ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME TO CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Year ended

June 30,

Notes 2015 2014

Loss (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment 17 $ 161 $ (10,293)

Gain on assets held for resale 17 (493) (3,736)

Loss (gain) on disposal of indefinite-life intangible assets 17 209 -

Impairment of intangible assets 11 1,192 295

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 25 457 -

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9 3,060 3,317

Amortization of deferred development costs 11 2,932 2,565

Amortization of finite-life intangible assets 11 109 107

Stock-based compensation 16 502 23

Income tax expense 20 6,501 7,927

Deferred income tax expense 20 (848) (1,914)

Interest expense 103 214

Interest income 18 (735) (672)

$ 13,150 $ (2,167)

23. NET CHANGE IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL RELATING TO OPERATIONS

Details of net change in each element of non-cash working capital relating to operations are as follows:

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

(Increase) decrease in current assets

Accounts receivable $ (1,378) $ 1,721

Inventories 2,026 3,290

Prepaid expenses (473) 112

Income tax receivable 508 (7,015)

683 (1,892)

(Decrease) increase in current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (481) (301)

Deferred revenue 93 840

(388) 539

$ 295 $ (1,353)
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24. SEGMENTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company's operations are organized into business units based on its products and services and has
two reportable segments. The product segment designs, develops and distributes electronic
communications products to cable and telecommunication markets.  The service segment provides cable
television and internet services in Saskatchewan and British Columbia.  Inter-segment transactions take
place at terms that approximate fair values.  Almost all of the Company's operations, employees and assets
are located in Canada. The following highlights key financial information for the operation of these
segments.

Year ended June 30, 2015

Product Services

Inter
Segment

Eliminations Total

Sales - external customers $ 80,348 $ 13,700 $                - $ 94,048

Sales - inter-segment 75 73 (148) -

Cost of sales 39,100 3,942 (75) 42,967

Gross margin 41,323 9,831 (73) 51,081

Operating expenses 20,485 6,202 (73) 26,614

Depreciation and amortization 4,388 1,713 - 6,101

Operating income 16,450 1,916 - 18,366

Finance income 610 22 - 632

Foreign exchange gain 1,782 9 - 1,791

Income before income taxes 18,842 1,947 - 20,789

Income tax expense 5,168 484 - 5,652

Net income and comprehensive income $ 13,674 $ 1,463 $ - $ 15,137

Total assets $ 161,712 $ 16,132 $ (9,772) $ 168,072

Total liabilities $ 13,753 $ 2,995 $ - $ 16,748
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24. SEGMENTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION continued

Year ended June 30, 2014

Product Services

Inter
Segment

Eliminations Total

Sales - external customers $ 76,408 $ 14,297 $ - $ 90,705

Sales - inter-segment 496 - (496) -

Cost of sales 41,949 4,378 (496) 45,831

Gross margin 34,955 9,919 - 44,874

Operating expenses 6,005 2,992 - 8,997

Depreciation and amortization 4,035 1,954 - 5,989

Operating income 24,915 4,973 - 29,888

Finance income 496 (38) - 458

Foreign exchange gain 270 (1) - 269

Income before income taxes 25,681 4,934 - 30,615

Income tax expense 5,156 857 - 6,013

Net income and comprehensive income $ 20,525 $ 4,077 $ - $ 24,602

Total assets $ 152,335 $ 14,713 $ (9,773) $ 157,275

Total liabilities $ 14,926 $ 2,876 $ - $ 17,802

Inter-segment elimination of total assets represents the fair value adjustment of assets acquired in previous
years' acquisitions.

Geographical: 

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Sales to external customers

United States $ 72,639 $ 69,060

Canada 20,013 17,477

Other 1,396 4,168

$ 94,048 $ 90,705

There are no non-current assets located outside of Canada.  Geographic location is based on shipping
location and customer knowledge.
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24. SEGMENTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION continued

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Sales to major customers accounting for more than 10% of sales

Customer A $ 43,247 $ 40,906

$ 43,247 $ 40,906

The sales to this major customer is within the product segment.  

25. IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Company identified impairment indicators in connection to four of
its cash-generating units (CGU's) relating to YourLink's operations in British Columbia.  These CGU's were
determined based on geographic locations. Based on cash flow projections for the next fiscal year and
forecasts over four additional years, it was determined that, under current circumstances, these CGU's
would likely not be generating positive cash flow going forward.  Current forecasting of potential growth as
well as cost savings initiatives will not be sufficient to have these CGU's cash flow support the carrying
amounts of the CGU's.

The recoverable amount of the CGU's was estimated based on a value in use calculation using these cash
flow projections from financial budgets approved by senior management covering the next fiscal year.  It
was determined that the carrying amounts of these CGU's exceeded the estimates of their recoverable
amounts and that there had been impairment in the property, plant and equipment in respect of these
CGU's. As a result, the Company recorded $457 in impairment charges relating to this property, plant and
equipment.  These assets are included in the Services operating segment.

26. COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES

The Company guarantees a $1.0 million credit facility to YourLink Inc. by a Canadian chartered bank.

Operating Leases

The Company has entered into operating lease commitments for office equipment.  The Company has also
entered into operating lease commitments for the lease of buildings.  The equipment leases have an
average life between two and three years with no renewal options included in the contract.  The building
leases have renewal terms of zero to eight years.  No restrictions have been placed upon the Company by
entering into these leases.

The Company has future minimum lease payment obligations under non-cancelable operating leases as
follows:

 June 30,

2015

 June 30,

2014

Within one year $ 1,503 $ 1,616

After one year but not more than five years 3,477 5,193

More than five years 2 -

$ 4,982 $ 6,809
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26. COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEES continued

Lease and sublease payments recognized as an expense for the year ending June 30, 2015 include $1,625
in general and administrative expenses (June 30, 2014 - $1,207).

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Vecima, the ultimate reporting parent of the consolidated group, is a publicly traded company on the Toronto
Stock Exchange.  Dr. Surinder Kumar, Chairman of the Board, directly or indirectly controls the majority of
the outstanding common shares.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries listed in the
following table:

% equity interest

Name
Participating voting

shares
Participating non-

voting shares

Spectrum Signal Processing (USA) Inc. 100 -

Vecima Telecom India Private Ltd. 95 -

6105971 Canada Inc. 100 -

YourLink Inc. - 100

The Company holds 100% of the non-voting participating shares in YourLink Inc., retains all the risks and
rewards of the residual value related to YourLink Inc., and retains all the benefits and risks of operating
YourLink.  The Company's two non-independent directors own the voting non-participating shares in
YourLink.  Based on these facts and circumstances, management determined that in substance the
Company controls this entity and therefore, has consolidated this entity in its financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the company: 

Year ended

June 30,

2015 2014

Salaries and short-term employee benefits $ 1,055 $ 1,085

Post-employment pension 34 35

Termination benefits - 24

Stock-based compensation 247 15

$ 1,336 $ 1,159

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period
related to key management personnel. Key management personnel consist of the Board of Directors and
certain executives.

The total fair value, at date of grant calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, for stock
options awarded to key management personnel was $607 for the year ended June 30, 2015 (2014 - $42).
Key management personnel were awarded 185,000 stock options in the year ended June 30, 2015 (2014 -
nil). As these stock options awarded are granted for six years with vesting based on service and are equity
settled, the expense will be recognized ratably over a period of years and thus only a portion of the awards
are included in the table above.
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued

The Company leases a building in Saskatoon under a ten-year lease from Dr. Surinder Kumar at the market
rate at the commencement of the lease of $10.00 per square foot.  The lease expires in 2019.  The rental
expense relating to this transaction was $282 for the year ended June 30, 2015 (year ended June 30, 2014 -
$282).

28. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

June 30, 2015

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Short-term investments $ 46,894 $ 46,894 $ - $ -

June 30, 2014

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Short-term investments $ 33,197 $ 33,197 $ - $ -

Derivative financial instruments 26 26 - -

During the years ending June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014, there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

Derivative financial instruments are included in accounts receivable (June 30, 2014 - accounts receivable) in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Risks 

The Company is exposed in varying degrees to a variety of financial risks from its use of financial
instruments: credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk and interest rate risk.  The source of risk exposure and
how each is managed is outlined below.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Credit Risk 

Cash and cash equivalents are placed with major Canadian financial institutions rated in the two highest
grades by nationally recognized ratings agencies.  Concentration of credit risk exists with respect to the
Company's cash and cash equivalents, as all amounts are held at major Canadian financial institutions.
Credit risk is also managed by maintaining short-term investments (short-term deposits in cashable
Guaranteed Investment Certificates) with Canadian financial institutions rated in the two highest grades by
nationally recognized ratings agencies and British Columbia credit unions.  Deposits with British Columbia
credit unions are insured through the Credit Union Deposit Insurance Corporation.  This insurance exceeds
the amounts otherwise covered under the federal deposit insurance for cash deposits.

Credit risk also arises from the possibility that a customer would fail to fulfill its financial obligations, and
therefore the Company's credit risk lies in the collectability of its accounts receivable.  Trade accounts
receivable are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less allowance
for doubtful accounts.  An allowance for doubtful accounts is established when there is a reasonable
expectation that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivable.  The carrying amount of the trade accounts receivable is reduced through the use of the
allowance account, and the amount of any increases in the allowance is recognized in the statement of
income.  The Company manages its credit risk related to its trade receivables through a credit management
program.  Credit approval policies and procedures are in place guiding the granting of credit to new
customers.  Existing customer accounts are reviewed every 12-18 months.  The Company has an allowance
for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2015 of $107 (June 30, 2014 - $165).  At June 30, 2015, the Company had
three major customers (June 30, 2014 - three) who accounted for approximately 70% (June 30, 2014 - 71%)
of the year-end accounts receivable balance.

The aging of trade receivables that are not considered to be impaired are as follows:

 June 30,

2015

 June 30,

2014

Current $ 12,170 $ 10,611

31 to 60 days 495 500

61 to 90 days 203 65

Over 90 days 88 355

$ 12,956 $ 11,531
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk arises from the Company's general funding needs and in the management of its assets,
liabilities and capital.  The Company manages its liquidity risk to maintain sufficient liquid financial resources
to fund its operations and meet its commitments and obligations in a cost-effective manner.  The Company
currently holds a significant balance of cash and short-term investments which helps to mitigate this risk.
The Company has access to a credit facility in the amount of $15,000 with a Canadian chartered bank.  As
of June 30, 2015, the remaining amount available to be drawn under this credit facility is $15,000.

The table below presents a maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities:

Payments due within

Carrying
Amount of

Liability 1 year 1-3 years Thereafter

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 9,186 $ 9,186 $                - $                - 

Long-term debt obligations 2,958 250 750 1,958

Other long-term liabilities 63 - 63 -

$ 12,207 $ 9,436 $ 813 $ 1,958

Currency Risk 

Approximately 85% (June 30, 2014 - 84%) of the Company's sales are denominated in United States dollars
and the Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage foreign currency exchange risk
related to exposures of the exchange rates for the Canadian dollar.  These contracts are considered "held
for trading" instruments.  Changes in the value of these contracts are recorded as an element of finance
income or finance costs.

As of June 30, 2015, the total gross notional amount of the Company's forward foreign exchange contracts
was $nil USD (June 30, 2014 - $3,300).  Changes in the fair value of these instruments are included in other
income in the current year.  In the year ended June 30, 2015, the Company has an unrealized net gain of
$nil (June 30, 2014 - unrealized net gain $26) on outstanding purchase contracts.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, if the Canadian dollar had weakened or strengthened by 1% against the
U.S. dollar with all other variables held constant, net income before income taxes would have been $551
(June 30, 2014 - $537) higher or lower.

Interest Rate Risk 

The Company is exposed to floating interest rate risk, as the required cash flows to service the debt will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market rates.  This risk is limited to the line of credit and long-term debt.
The Company is also exposed to changes in interest rates related to its short-term investments, as the
income received from these investments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market rates. A 1%
movement in the interest rate would have resulted in a $370 change to net income for the year ended June
30, 2015 (June 30, 2014 - $256).
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30. CAPITAL DISCLOSURES

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to maintain financial flexibility while managing its cost
of optimizing access to capital.  The Company defines its capital as current and long-term debt and
shareholders' equity.  The Company's capital as at June 30, 2015 was $154,282 (June 30, 2014 -
$142,681). The Company monitors its capital structure and based on changes in economic conditions, may
adjust the structure through the repurchase of shares, the issuance of shares or the use of debt facilities.
The Company manages its capital structure in order to ensure sufficient resources are available to fund the
development and growth of next generation products, to fund the expansion of its manufacturing facilities
and to further raise the profile of the Company, providing an opportunity to reinforce its market position.

Under its various borrowing agreements, the Company must satisfy certain restrictive covenants including a
minimum financial ratio for the working capital and maximum financial ratio for the debt/equity ratio and the
purchase of property, plant and equipment. During the year, the Company complied with all these capital
requirements.  The Company did not pledge cash or cash equivalents under these borrowing agreements.

31. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On September 24, 2015, the Board of Directors announced a change in the Company's dividend policy -
raising the annual dividend from $0.18 per common share to $0.22 per common share.  The Board of
Directors also declared a dividend of $0.055 per common share, payable on October 30, 2015 to
shareholders of record as at October 9, 2015.
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